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SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Mission Statement

To be the leading financial institution in the country
that provides lease finance facilities to the SME sector
on a sustainable basis.

To have a client focused strategy and develop the
approach and expertise in SME's that will set an example
and lead the way for the financial industry to serve
the SME’'s on a commercial basts.

Vision Statement

In partnership with the people, empowering small
and medium enterprises, strengthening the
economy, towards a prosperous Pakistan.
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SME Leasing Limited
(A subsicary of SWE Bank Ltd)

Branch Network

KARACHI

Main Branch:

Office # 304, 3rd Floor, Business Arcade,
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.
Phone No. 92-21-34322128-9 Fax: 92-21-34322082

HYDERABAD

M-06, Mezzanine Floor, Rabi Shopping Centre,
Cantonment Area, Saddar.
Phone: 022-9200747, Fax: 022-2782418

LAHORE

Office No. 805, 8th Floor, Al-Hafeez Heights,
65-D-A, Sir Syed/Ghalib Road, Gulberg IlI, Lahore.
Phone: 042-35751660

ISLAMABAD

Office No. 15, 2nd Floor, Rehmat Centre, |-8 Markaz.
Phone: 051-4861407, 051-4938279

SIALKOT
Chowk Shahab Pura, City Bazar, Street No. 3, Shop No. 195,
Opposite Sahab Marriage Hall, Sialkot.
Phone: 052-3572136

PESHAWAR

34, Ground Floor, State Life Building, The Mall, Peshawar Cantt.
Phone: 091-9211683, 091-5254004, Fax: 091-9211683
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SME Leasing Limited
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Javed Mahmood, Chairman
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad
Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi

Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din

Ms. Darakshan S. Sheikh Vohra
Mr. Asghar Magsood *

* Approval of the SECP is in process.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Asghar Magsood

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi, Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Javed Mahmood, Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi, Chairman
Mr. Dilshad Alt Ahmad
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti
Mr. Asghar Magsood

PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi, Chairman
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi, Chairman
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti
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SME Leasing Limited
(A subsdiaryof SWE Bank Lid)

Corporate Information

COMPANY SECRETARY & CFO
Mr. M. Shahzad

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
BDO Ebrahim & Co,
Chartered Accountants

INTERNAL AUDITOR
Mr. Khurram Ali

TAX CONSULTANTS
EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR
Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.
Corporate Legal Consultants | Barristers & Advocates | High Courts & Supreme Courts

CREDIT RATING
Long Term: B- (B Minus) Short Term: A4

REGISTERED OFFICE
56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road, F-5/1, Blue Area, Islamabad

MAIN OFFICE
Office No.304, 3rd Floor, Business Arcade, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi
Tel: (+92-21) 34322128-129-137
Fax: (+92-21) 34322082
E-mail: info@smelease.com

SHARES REGISTRAR
Corptec Associates (Pvt.) Limited
503-E, Johar Town, Lahore

BANKS AND LENDING INSTITUTIONS
SME Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
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(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Notice of the 20th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Twentieth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of SME Leasing Limited (the
Company) will be held at Hotel Crown Plaza, Islamabad on Tuesday, April 26, 2022 at 09:30 am to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS.

1.

2.

To confirm the minutes of the 8th Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on July 26, 2021.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December
31,2021 together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2022 and fix their remuneration. The Board
of Directors has recommended appointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants as auditors of the
Company, for the year ending December 31, 2022.

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board
%LJ-~4""’)
(G
M.Shahzad
Company Secretary

Karachi: March 04, 2022

Notes:

1.

The Register of the members of the Company will remain closed from April 19, 2022 to April 26, 2022 (both days
inclusive).

In view of the continuing threats posed by the COVID-19 pandemic and in line with the directions issued to listed
companies by the SECP, vide its circular No. 4 of 2021 dated February 15, 2021 and subsequent circular No. 6 of
2021 dated March 3, 2021, the Company has made special arrangements for attending the AGM through electronic
means.

The entitled shareholders (whose name appeared in the Books of the Company by close of business on April 19,
2022 interested in attending the AGM through electronic means are requested to get themselves registered with
the Company Secretary Office at least 48 hours before the holding of AGM at 20agm@smelease.com by providing
the following:

Name of

CNIC No. Folio / CDS No. Cell No. Email address
shareholder

Login facility will be opened thirty minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the meeting
after identification process. Shareholders will be able to login and participate in the AGM proceedings through
their devices after completing all the formalities required for identification and verification of the shareholders.

The entitled shareholders may send their comments and suggestions relating to the agenda items of the AGM

to the Company Secretary office at least two working days before the AGM, at above mentioned email address.
Shareholders are required to mention their full name, CNIC No. and Folio / CDS No. for this purpose.
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(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend,
speak and vote at the meeting on his / her behalf. The proxy form must be deposited at the Main office of the
Company situated at 304, 3rd Floor, Business Arcade, Shahra-e-Faisal, and Karachi not later than 48 hours before
the time of the meeting.

For attending the meeting and appointing proxies, CDC account holders will further have to follow the guidelines
as laid down in Circular No. 1 of 2000 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the SECP. The rights of members and their
proxies exercisable during meetings and all other relevant information are listed in section 137 of the Companies
Act, 2017.

Shareholders are requested to notify the change of their address, if any, to the share Registrar of the Company.
The annual report 2021 has been dispatched at the registered address of all the members. For future, as allowed
under SECP Notification S.R.0.787(1)/2014, the annual report will be dispatched at the email address of those

members who have provided their email address and consent to receive the annual report electronically. For this
purpose, a standard request form is available at the company's web site www.smelease.com.
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SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Directors’' Report

The Board of Directors of SME Leasing Limited ("SLL") is pleased to present the annual audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Company

SLL was incorporated in Pakistan in July 2002 and acquired the status of listed company in December 2006. SLL is a
subsidiary of SME Bank Limited which holds 73.14% of the company's shares. The company is licensed to carry out
leasing business as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the Non-Banking Finance Companies Rules issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP").

The core objective of the company is to extend lease and working capital financing facilities to small and medium
enterprises of the country.

Operational Review

In order to address the challenges caused by COVID-19, measures were also taken in 2021 to keep the economy moving.
The management believes that it has handled challenge caused by COVID-19 successfully.

Considering funding constraints, the Company remained focused on its aggressive strategy of recoveries from its
portfolio and writing new good quality leases with the target of minimum default. During the year total recoveries
amounted to Rs.83 million were made whereas fresh leases of Rs. 17.704 million (Gross) were written. Out of total
recovery of Rs 83 million, Rs 51 million were from chronic NPLs. The default rate in the new business over the last 5
years has continued to remain low.

The only source of funding at the disposal of the Company is a credit line from the Parent Company, SME Bank Limited
which has almost exhausted. The company managing its expenses in order to curtail losses.

Financial Review

Revenue 21,393,608 21,954,906
Expenses (62,579,566) (65,251,558)
Operating (loss) before reversals / (provisions) (41,185,958) (43,296,652)
Total reversals / (provisions) 28,054,207 (14,056,185)
(Loss) before taxation (13,131,751) (57,352,837)
Taxation (267,420) (323,749)
(Loss) after taxation (13,399,171) (57,676,586)
(Loss) per share - basic and diluted (0.42) (1.80)

The revenue from operations decreased by 2.5% due to maturity of leases and less business written during the year.
Administrative expenses recorded increase of 1% which was due to inflation. The financial charges recorded decrease
of 14% due to decrease in benchmark rate used for the financing.
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Key Ratios
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O Cargo Carriers 4.70%
B Chemicals 0.60%
O Communication 1.37%
O Confectionary 1.05%
W Construction And Building Products  0.87%
O Dates 0.16%
B Education 1.50%
O Engineering 2.33%
B Entertainment 4.60%
W Film Processing 7.25%
O Fisheries 0.36%
O Food And Beverages 6.56%
B Furniture 0.12%
B Garments 5.82%
B Gems & Jeweler 3.77%
B Health Care 7.45%
O Leather &Tannery 1.06%
O Miscellaneous 8.65%
O Oil & Gas 7.23%
O Pharma 3.12%
O Plastic 2.35%
O Printing & Packaging 2.93%
O Public Transport Services 4.99%
O Rubber 18.48%
O Textile 2.67%

Equipments,
6.78%

Vehicles, 25.65%

Machinery,
45.97%

Others, 21.60%
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SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

The Auditors have expressed qualified opinion due to non-obtaining of sufficient appropriate audit evidence about
the reversal of provision for taxation amounting to Rs. 7.9 million.

Economic review

In 2020 the State Bank of Pakistan (the SBP) reduced the discount rate due to which the Company's finance cost was
substantially reduced. However, during the year the discount rate was increased to 11% by the SBP due to various
economic indicators. Due to increase in discount rate, it is expected that the Company's finance cost will increase in
2022.

The Company remained aggressively focused on recoveries from problematic / NPL portfolios and used the same funds
in writing fresh quality business. The chronic non-performing portfolio and non-availability of funds is still the main
cause of continuing losses.

Dividend

During the year under review, the Company has incurred a loss; and, therefore, the Board has not recommended any
dividend for the year under review.

Minimum equity requirements

The company being a non-deposit taking entity is required to meet minimum capital requirement of Rs.50 million. Due
to continued losses, the equity has been eroded and as at December 31, 2021 the Company equity was Rs 6.535 million.
The Company is not meeting with the minimum equity requirement.

Future Prospects

The only credit line at the disposal of the Company from the Parent Company has almost exhausted, therefore, the
Company is solely relying on internal cash generation through recovery measures, which can help in bringing improvement
in the years to come.

With regard to the privatization of the SME Bank Limited, it may be recalled that the Cabinet Committee on Privatization
(CCOP) approved the new privatization program of the Bank on March 06, 2019 to divest the GOPs equity stake in the
Bank along with management control to a strategic investor as per the decision dated November 19, 2018 of the
Government of Pakistan, whereafter the due process was started wherein various stakeholders participated including
the prospective investors. However, due to lack of interest of prospective investor, Board of Privatization Commission
in its meeting held on November 25, 2021 has recommended delisting of SME Bank Limited from list of privatizations.
The Financial Adviser (FA) of Privatization Commission asserted that despite all efforts and iterative interactions with
the pre-qualified bidders to date positive feedback from the pre-qualified bidders is not forthcoming and owing to the
deteriorating financial position of Bank, the FA recommended to shelve the Transaction. Recommendation of the Board
of Privatization was presented to the CCOP in its meeting held on December 31, 2021. The CCOP decided to ascertain
the way forward for the bank prior to its delisting from list of privatisations; and in this regard constituted a committee
consisting of Deputy Governor SBP, Secretary Finance, Secretary Privatization Commission, Chairman SECP and Minister
of Finance.

Human Resource

The management fully understands the need and role of skilled human resource in achieving improved business results.
Training and development of human resources through in-house orientations and external training programs is being
implemented for capacity building as far as possible.

Board of Directors

In July 2021 election of Directors were held and Mr Javed Mahmood; Mr Tahir Saeed Effendi; and Ms Darakhshan S

Vohra elected unopposed. During the year due to resignation of Ms. Sameena Gul, the Board appointed Mr. Bilal Mohy
Ud Din as a Non-executive Director, who is nominated by SME Bank Limited.
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The board is comprising of following:
Male Directors 6 * **
Female Directors 1 **
Total Directors 7

* Including the Chief Executive Officer.
** Approval of the SECP in respect of two Directors is in process.

The Board's composition is as follows:

Total Male Female
Independent Directors ** 3 2 1
Non-executive Directors 3 3 0
Executive Director * ** 1 1 0
Total 7 6 1

* The Chief Executive Officer.

** Approval of the SECP in respect of two Directors is in process.

Committees of the Board:

Following is the composition of the Committees of the Board (as at December 31, 2021)

Audit Committee

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member Non-executive Director
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din Member Non-executive Director
Risk Management Committee
Mr. Javed Mahmood Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member Non-executive Director
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din Member Non-executive Director
Human Resource Committee
Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad Member Non-executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member Non-executive Director
Mr. Asghar Magsood Member CEO
Procurement Committee
Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad Member Non-executive Director
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din Member Non-executive Director
Nomination Committee
Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad Member Non-executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member Non-executive Director
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(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year under review, three meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Due to unavoidable circumstances,
the meeting was not held in third quarter of 2021. The details of attendance are as follows:

Name of Director Total number of meetings Total meetings
entitled to attend attended

Mr. Javed Mahmood

Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad

Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti

Ms. Darakshan S. Vohra

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi

Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din

Mr. Bilal Mustafa (retired on 26 July 2021)
Ms. Sameena Gul (resigned on 05 July 2021)

NIN[=[=[N|W WwWWw
NIN[=[=[N|W WwWWw

Meetings of the Audit Committee

During the year under review, three meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Due to unavoidable circumstances,
the meeting was not held in third quarter of 2021. The audit committee was reconstituted on 27 October 2021. The
details of attendance are as follows:

Name of Director Total number of meetings Total meetings
entitled to attend attended

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi 1
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti 3
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din 1
Mr. Javed Mahmood 2
Ms. Darakshan S. Vohra 2

NIN(—=|W|—

Meeting of the HR and Remuneration Committee

During the year under review, one meeting of the Human Resource Committee was held. The details of attendance are
as follows:

Name of Director Total number of meeting Total meeting
entitled to attend attended

Mr. Bilal Mustafa 1 1

Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 1 1

Ms. Darakshan S. Vohra 1 1

Meeting of the Risk Management Committee; Procurement Committee; and Nomination Committee

During the year under review, no meeting of the Risk Management Committee; Procurement Committee; and Nomination
Committee was held.

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Meetings of the Board as well as its committees.
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(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Remuneration Policy of Executive and Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are paid fee of Rs=25,000/- and Rs=10,000/- for attending each meeting of the Board and
its committees, respectively. The Executive Director is not paid for attending the meeting of the Board and its committees;
and is paid remuneration determined by the Board.

Corporate Governance - Public Sector Companies

The Board of Directors is committed to uphold the highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Company has also
implemented the provisions of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 and a Review Report
to the Members on the Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 on compliance with best practices of the Code
of Corporate Governance by the statutory auditors is annexed with this report.

Business Ethics

The Code of conduct of the Company sets out a framework for all the employees of the company to perform in the

environment of integrity and honesty with complete dedication ensuring highest standards of ethical business conduct

and compliance with the applicable laws.

Directors' Declaration:

The Board of the company is fully cognizant of its responsibility as recognized by the Listed Companies (Code of

Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 issued by

the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Following are the comments on acknowledgement of commitment

towards high standards of corporate governance and continuous improvements:

i)  Compliance has been made with the relevant principles of corporate governance, and the rules that have not
been complied with, have been identified along with the period in which such non-compliance is made, and

reasons for such non-compliance.

ii)  The financial statements prepared by the management of SME Leasing Limited present fairly its statement of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows, statement of comprehensive income and changes in its equity;

iii)  Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained;

iv) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

v) International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of financial
statements;

vi) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;
vii) The non-executive members of the Board (including independent directors) do not have fixed remuneration and
are being paid a fixed fee for each meeting attended. The said fees are decided upon by the entire Board of directors

collectively.

viii) There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in view of the mitigating
factors as stated in notes to the financial statements;

ix) There has been no material departure from the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013;

x)  Key operating and financial data for last six years in summarized form is included in the Annual report.
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xi)  The value of investments of recognized provident fund as at December 31, 2021 was Rs 6.697 million (un-audited)

and as at December 31, 2020, was Rs 5.851 million (un-audited).

xii) No trading in shares of the Company was carried out by the Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer/Company
Secretary and their spouses and minor children during the year except following

No of shares Sold by Purchased by
1 Ms. Sameena Gul Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi
1 Mr. Bilal Mustafa Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi
1 Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din
Credit Rating

On April 06, 2021, PACRA downgraded the entity rating, which is as under:
+  Longterm "B-"
+  Short term "A4"
«  Outlook "Negative"

Parent Company

SME Bank Limited and its nominees hold 73.14% of the shareholding in the company.

Internal Control

There is an efficient system of internal financial controls in place for ensuring of effective and efficient conduct of
operations, safeguarding of Company assets, compliance with applicable laws and regulations and reliable financial
reporting. The monitoring of implementation of measures are being done by the Internal Audit function and the Audit

Committee reviews the effectiveness thereof.

Auditors

The present auditors M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-appointment for the year ending December 31, 2022. On the proposal of the Board's Audit Committee, the Board
recommends the appointment M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Company

for the year 2022, on remuneration of Rs 355,600/-.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding of the Company as on December 31, 2021, is annexed with this report.

Acknowledgement
The Board recognises and appreciates the continued support of all stakeholders.

On behalf of Board of Directors

ol

Asghar Maqsood
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: Islamabad, March 04, 2022

N

Javed Mahmood
Chairman
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SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Chairman's Review Report to the
Shareholders

| am pleased to present my report to the shareholders on the performance of SME Leasing Limited (the Company)
during the year 2021.

After the retirement of Mr Bilal Mustafa, Chairman who completed his two terms fresh elections were held and Mr Tahir
Saeed Effendi was elected as new Director alongwith Mr Bilal Mohy Ud Din who replaced Ms Sameena Gul who resigned
on her own accord.

In the year 2020, the State Bank of Pakistan (the SBP) reduced the policy rate which greatly benefited your company.
However, this did not last long as the policy rate was once again increased impacting our cost of doing business.

Your company has been endeavouring to reduce the Non Performing Portfolio. The recovery of approximately Rs 83
million were made and | am pleased to inform you that Rs 51 million of this amount constituted long stuck up leases.

Due to pandemic related constraints, minimum equity requirement, and unavailability of financial resources your
company has remained under severe operational constraints. The limited availability of a line of credit from the Parent
(SME Bank) has helped to some extent the Company to remain operational. The massive Non Performing Portfolio and
liquidity constraints remain our major cause of concern. For long the Company along with the parent was to have been
privatised but of late the Privatisation Commission has decided that they will not pursue the privatisation of the parent
bank. This now requires your Board to further request the parent (SME Bank) to inject the required equity and cash
resources to ensure continuing operation of the Company profitably.

The Financial Statements (FS) of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis based on various mitigating
factors as explained in the FS. Due to material uncertainty the Auditors still consider the Company as a going concern.

Effectiveness of the Board:

Due to the prevailing pandemic conditions, the Board and Audit Committee could not meet for more than three times
during the year. Also due to prevailing pandemic related conditions the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
could meet only once in a year. Unfortunately, no meeting could take place of the Risk Management Committee. The

Board being aware of these lapses will ensure that in the coming year it will be able to fulfil all its obligations.

| on behalf of the Board recognise and appreciate the continued support of all stakeholders.

N

Javed Mahmood
Chairman

Islamabad: 04 March 2022
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SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Financial Highlights

(Rupees in 000)

Balance Sheet 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Paid-up Capital 320,000 320,000 320,000 320,000 320,000 320,000
Total Equity 6,535 19,560 77,108 111,680 133,251 156,956
Gross Lease Receivable 460,988 533,660 587,376 621,899 609,310 632,010
Net Investment in Lease 275,342 323,368 383,222 411,412 389,669 342,510
Long-Term Liabilities 143,988 160,557 181,674 188,291 177,555 204,736
Current Liabilities 196,022 225,501 222,938 209,030 166,839 142,075
Current Assets 114,140 158,212 168,134 164,379 116,575 82,160
Total Assets 346,546 405,618 481,720 509,001 477,644 503,767

(Rupees in 000)

Income Statement 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Lease Income 21,303 21,583 26,466 31,160 26,671 32,531
Total Revenue 21,394 21,955 26,578 31,451 27,363 37,415
Financial Charges 18,489 21,570 22,459 14,422 10,318 13,225
Administrative Expenses 44,090 43,682 44,234 43,642 40,548 38,111
Provisions / (Reversal) (28,054) 14,056 (4,731) (5,602) (1,326) (864)
Total Expenses 62,580 65,252 66,693 (58,064) 50,866 51,336
(Loss ) Before Taxation (13,132) (57,353) (35,385) (21,011) (22,177) (13,057)
(Loss) After Taxation (13,399) (57,677) (35,694) (21,361) (22,510) (13,382)

Financial Indicators 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Breakup Value (Rs per share) 0.20 0.61 241 3.49 4.16 4.90
Current Ratio (X) 0.58 0.70 0.75 0.79 0.70 0.58
Earning Per Share (Rs.) (0.42) (1.80) (1.12) (0.67) (0.70) (0.42)
Financial Charges to Total Exps (%) 29.55 33.06 33.68 (24.84) 20.28 25.76
Financial Charges to Total Revenue (%) 86.43 98.25 84.51 45.86 37.71 3535
Income Expense Ratio (Times) 0.34 0.33 0.40 (0.54) 0.52 0.63
Net Profit Margin (%) (62.63) (262.70) (134.30) (67.92) (82.27) (35.77)
Return on Average Equity (%) (102.69) (119.33) (37.81) (17.44) (15.51) (8.10)
Return to Shareholders (%) - - - - - -

Revenue Per Share (Rs.) 0.67 0.69 0.83 0.98 0.86 1.17
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Financial Highlights and Charts
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SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct of SME Leasing Limited (SLL) has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Code
of Corporate Governance and other rules & policies formulated by the Company. The Code sets out fundamental
policies/standards which intended to guide employees of the Company in the performance of their professional duties
and responsibilities in a manner that maintains company's commitment to honesty, integrity and quality. The Code
applies to all peoples related to SLL including its Directors, Officers and Employees whether permanent or contractual.

The Code of Conduct also serves as a model for the employees of the SME Leasing Limited, who are free to adopt
additional measures as and when required and to integrate it into their existing codes.

The salient features of the Code are as follows;

28

1.

Business conduct.

SME Leasing Limited (SLL) is committed to conduct its business activities and to structure relationships with
its customers, associates, business partners, employees and others with integrity, honesty, sincerity and
professionalism.

Compliance with laws and regulations.

All the Directors and employees must ensure to comply with all the applicable laws, guidelines and regulations
of the country. This include understanding the laws and regulations relevant to their work and complying
with the legal requirements effecting business activities, ignorance of the law does not excuse SLL or its
employees from their obligation to comply. If in doubt advice should be taken.

Competition and fair dealing.

SLL believes in fair competition and seeks to out perform its competitors fairly and honestly through superior
performance. The company supports the appropriate competition laws. No company personnel should take
unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, or abuse of privileged information,
misrepresentation of material facts, or any other intentional unfair-dealing practice.

Conflict of interest.

Each Director and Employee shall maintain a high degree of integrity, engage in honest and ethical conduct
and avoid any activity or personal interest that creates, or appears to create, a conflict between their interests
and the interests of SLL. The company's assets and information should not be used for any personal advantage
or gain .Where conflict of interest exists it should be disclosed and guidance sought. Conflict of interest may
include followings:

e Owing a meaningful financial interest in an organization that competes with SLL.

@ Making any transaction or dealing in which personal interests conflict, or may appear to conflict,
with the interest of SLL.

@ Insider dealings, bribes, kickbacks or acceptance of compensation from any other person or
entity as a result of business activity or prospective business activity affecting SLL.

Gifts and favors
Nothing shall be given or received in any type of material gift, cash or in kind, token or favor that could

reasonably be viewed as having the potential to influence engagement or conduct of business in relation
to particular customer, community, vendor, supplier or competitor.
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Code of Conduct

Political contributions and activities.

SLL does not support any political party and is prohibited from making any political contribution either
directly or indirectly promoting party interests.

Human rights and dignity of the individuals.

SLL respect and promote the equality of opportunity regardless of gender, race, disability, color, and marital
status, ethnic and national origin. Policies pertaining to recruitment and promotions are excellence and
performance oriented and is free from any discrimination.

Guarding Corporate Assets.

Company's assets shall be used for company business only. Without specific approval no one is allowed to
use company's property for any non- company purpose.

Communication & disclosure.
SLL encourages its employees to communicate with their seniors or any appropriate person in regard to

doubt(s) about a course of action in any situation. Any suspected material violation of a law, regulation or
ethical standard and internal policies must be reported to appropriate level without any fear of vengeance.
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SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Statement of Compliance
With the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Schedule |
Name of Company: SME Leasing Limited
Name of Ministry: Ministry of Finance
For the year ended: December 31, 2021

I.  This statement is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013
(hereinafter called "The Rules") issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby
a public sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of public sector governance.

ll.  The Company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

S. No. Provision of the Rules Rule | y | N Remarks
no.
1. | Company is directed and managed by a sufficient number of persons who | 2A (1) v/ | The application for
are fit and proper persons to hold the positions which they hold. issuance of NOC of the

SECP in respect of two
Directors is in process.

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as defined | 2(d) | v
under the Rules.

2. | The Board has at least one third of its total members as independent | 3(2) | v
directors.

At present the Board includes:

Date of
Category Names Appointment
Independent Mr. Javed Mahmood 30-08-2021
Directors Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi 30-08-2021
*

Ms. Darakhshan S.Vohra

* Application for issuance

Non-Executive Directors | Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 30-08-2021 .
Mr. M. Mubeen Mufti 30-08-2021 i‘;fﬂ:gc':?sc by the SECP is
Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din 12-10-2021 P

Executive Director Mr. Asghar Magsood *

3. | The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director | 3(5) V4
on more than five public sector companies and listed companies
simultaneously, except their subsidiaries.

4. | The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria given | 3(7) v
in the Annexure to the Rules in making nominations of the persons for
election as board members under the provisions of the Act.

5. | The chairman of the board is working separately from the chief executive | 4(1) v
of the Company.

6. | The chairman has been elected by the board of directors except where | 4(4) v
chairman of the Board has been appointed by the Government.

7. The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chief 5(2) v
executive on the basis of the fit and proper criteria as well as the guidelines
specified by the Commission.
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S. No.

Provision of the Rules

Rule
no.

Remarks

(@) The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" to ensure that
professional standards and corporate values are in place.

(b) The board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures, including posting the same on the company's
website (www.smelease.com)

(c) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the
identification and redressal of grievances arising from unethical
practices.

5(4)

Code of Conduct is
disseminated through
website and also
published in financial
statements.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to ensure
compliance with the fundamental principles of probity and propriety;
objectivity, integrity and honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders,
in the manner prescribed in the Rules.

10.

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of interest
policy to lay down circumstances or considerations when a person may
be deemed to have actual or potential conflict of interests, and the
procedure for disclosing such interest.

11.

The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti-corruption
to minimize actual or perceived corruption in the company.

12.

The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and
fair procedures for making appointments and for determining terms and
conditions of service.

13.

The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the company's
internal rules and procedures relating to public procurement, tender
regulations, and purchasing and technical standards, when dealing with
suppliers of goods and services.

14.

The board has developed a vision or mission statement, corporate strategy
and significant policies of the company.

15.

The Board has developed significant policies of the company. A complete
record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which
they were approved or amended has been maintained.

16.

The board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any service
delivered or a good sold by the Company as a public service obligation,
and has submitted its request for appropriate compensation to the
Government for consideration.

5(8)

N/A

17.

The Board has ensured compliance with policy direction requirements
received from the Government.

18.

(a) The board has met at least four times during the year.

(b) Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working
papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings.

(c) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

Due to unavoidable
circumstances, the Board
was not able to meet in the
third quarter of 2021.
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S. No.

Provision of the Rules

Rule

Remarks

19.

The board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior
management on annual basis and held them accountable for
accomplishing objectives, goals and key performance indicators set for
this purpose.

20.

The board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions
placed before it after recommendations of the audit committee. A party
wise record of transactions entered into with the related parties during
the year has been maintained.

21.

(@) The board has approved the profit and loss account for, and balance
sheet as at the end of, the first, second and third quarter of the year
as well as the financial year end.

(b) In case of listed PSCs, the board has prepared half yearly accounts and
undertaken limited scope review by the auditors.

(c) The Board has placed the annual financial statements on the company's
website.

10

22.

All the board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the
company to apprise them of the material developments and information
as specified in the Rules.

11

23.

(@) The board has formed the requisite committees, as specified in the
Rules.

(b) The committees were provided with written term of reference defining
their duties, authority and composition.

(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all
the board members.

(d) The committees were chaired by the following non -executive directors:

Committee Number of members Name of Chair
Audit Committee 3 Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi

Risk Management 3 Mr. Javed Mahmood
Committee

Human Resource 4 Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi
Committee

Procurement 3 Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi
Committee

Nomination 3 Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi
Committee

12

24,

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor, by whatever name called, with their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.

13

25.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have requisite
qualification prescribed in the rules.

14

26.

The company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards
notified by the Commission in terms of subsection (1) of section 225 of
the Act.

16
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S. No.

Provision of the Rules

Rule
no.

Remarks

27.

The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with
the requirements of the Act and the Rules and fully describes the salient
matters required to be disclosed.

17

28.

The directors, CEO and executives, or their relatives, are not, directly or
indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or arrangement entered
into by or on behalf of the company except those disclosed to the company.

29.

(@) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual directors has been set in place and no director
is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

(b) The annual report of the company contains criteria and details of
remuneration of each director.

30.

The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by the chief
executive and chief financial officer, before consideration and approval
of the audit committee and the Board.

20

31.

The board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written terms
of reference, and having the following members:

Name of Member

Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi

Category | Professional Background

Chairman Banker

Mr. Muhammad
Mubeen Mufti

Member Head of IT

Mr. Bilal Mohy Ud Din | Member Banker

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are not members of the
audit committee.

21(1)
and
21(2)

32.

(@) The chieffinancial officer, the chief internal auditor, and a representative
of the external auditors attended all meetings of the audit committee
at which issues relating to accounts and audit were discussed.

(b

=

The audit committee met the external auditors, at least once a year,
without the presence of chief financial officer, the chief internal auditor
and other executives.

() The audit committee met the chief internal auditor and other members
of the internal audit function, at least once a year, without the presence
of chief financial officer and the external auditors.

21(3)

33.

(@) The Board has setup an effective internal audit function, which has
an audit charter, duly approved by the audit committee.

(b) The chief internal auditor has requisite qualification and experience
prescribed in the Rules.

(c) Theinternal audit reports have been provided to the external auditors
for their review.

22

N/A

The Chief Internal Auditor
resigned during the year;
and in his absence Head
of Compliance is working
as Officiating CIA. The
process of hiring of CIA is
in process.

34.

The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm and
all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in Pakistan.

23(4)

35.

The auditors have confirmed that they have observed applicable guidelines
issued by IFAC with regard to provision of non-audit services.

23(5)

ol
O

sghar'Maqgsood
Chief Executive Officer

N2

Javed Mahmood

Chairman
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Statement of Compliance

With the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

SCHEDULE 1

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with [except for the
following, toward which reasonable progress being made by the company to seek compliance by the end of next
accounting year]:

S.No.| Rule/ Reasons for non-compliance Future course of action
sub-
rule No.
1. 2A(1) The application has been submitted to the SECP for obtaining of | After issuance of NOC by the SECP
approval for the remaining two Directors which is in process. remaining two Directors will assume the

office. The Company is coordinating is
coordinating with the SECP in this

regard.
2. 6(1) Due to some unavoidable circumstance the Board could not meet | The Company has taken measures for
in 3rd quarter of 2021. holding of meetings in every quarter of
2022.
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With the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Certain additional disclosures as required under the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG 2019)

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1) The total number of directors are 7* as per the following:

a) Male: 6

b) Female: 1
*The application for issuance of NOC of the SECP in respect of two Directors is in process.

2) The composition of the Board is as follows:

i. Female directors
Ms Darakhshan Sheikh Vohra *

* The application for issuance of NOC of the SECP in respect of Ms Darakhshan Sheikh Vohra is in process.
3) The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to

frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

4) The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations;

5) During the year, the Board has not arranged Directors' Training program.
6) The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Name of Member Designation
Mr Tahir Saeed Effendi Chairman
Mr Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member

Mr Bilal Mohy Ud Din Member

b) HRand Remuneration Committee

Name of Member Designation
Mr Tahir Saeed Effendi Chairman
Ms. Dilshad Ali Ahmad Member

Mr Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member

Mr Asghar Magsood, CEO Member
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¢) Nomination Committee

Name of Member Designation
Mr Tahir Saeed Effendi Chairman
Ms. Dilshad Ali Ahmad Member

Mr Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member

d) Risk Management Committee

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Javed Mahmood Chairman
Mr Muhammad Mubeen Mufti Member

Mr Bilal Mohy Ud Din Member

e) Procurement Committee

Name of Member Designation
Mr Tahir Saeed Effendi, Chairman Chairman
Mr Dilshad Ali Ahmad, Member Member

Mr Bilal Mohy Ud Din, Member Member

7) The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee
for compliance;

8) The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee;

Quarterly (Due to unavoidable circumstances, the Audit Committee was not able to meet in the third quarter
of 2021).

b) HR and Remuneration Committee;
Yearly

c¢) Nomination Committee;
As and when required.

d) Risk Management Committee;
Yearly

e) Procurement Committee;

As and when required.
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9) The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the company;

10) The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

11) We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
with; and

12) Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below

Reference Description Explanation
of Rule

19 Directors' Training.-

19(1) Itis encouraged that by 30 June 2021 atleast 75% As on 30 June 2021, 67% of the directors on the
of the directors on the Board of the Company | board acquired prescribed certification. As
acquired the prescribed certification under any | election of the Board was due in July 2021, the
director training program offered by institutions, | certification was not arranged for the remaining
local or foreign, that meet the criteria specified | directors.
by the Commission and approved by it.

23 From 06 April 2021 till 31 December 2021, the | The hiring of internal auditors is expected to be
existing employee officiated the position of | completed in March 2022.
internal auditor who did not had requisite
qualifications. During this period the Company
was in the process of hiring.

24 No person shall be appointed as the company | The person holding the positions of CFO and the
secretary unless he holds the qualification as | Company Secretary have the requisite
specified under the relevant Regulations by the | qualifications and experience and is qualified to
Commission: be appointed as the Company Secretary and the

CFO of the company.
Provided, the same person shall not The Board in consideration of the financial health
simultaneously hold office of chief financial officer | of the Company and as the person meets with
and the company secretary of a listed company. requirements prescribed for holding the positions
of the CFO; and the Company Secretary have not
appointed separate individual for these posts.
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2nd Floor, Block-C
Lakson Square, Building No.1
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Karachi-74200
Pakistan

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 AND PUBLIC SECTOR
COMPANIES (CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules,2013 (both herein referred to as ‘Codes’) prepared by the Board of Directors of SME
Leasing Limited for the year ended December 31, 2021 to comply with the requirements of regulation
36 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance ) Regulations, 2019 and rule 24 of the Public
Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) respectively.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Codes, and report if it does not, and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Codes. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Codes.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Codes require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording
proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the
Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any
procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price
or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the ‘Statement of
Compliance’ does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
best practices contained in the Codes as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31,
2021.

Further, we Highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement of the Codes as reflected
in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the statement of Compliance:

Statement of Compliance as per Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Reference of Rule | Description

2A(1) The company does not comply with the requirement of minimum number of
directors.
6(1) The Board did not hold meeting in the 3 quarter of 2021.

Page - 1
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Statement of Compliance as per Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance ) Regulations,
2019
Reference of | Description
Regulation
7 The Company does not have a female director during the reporting period. A female
director Ms. Darakshan Sheikh Vohra was elected on July 26, 2021 whose application
for the approval of SECP is in process at the reporting date.
19 The criteria of acquiring of any director training program at least by 75% of directors
& as on June 30, 2021 has not been achieved. Only 67% of directors on the board have
19(1) acquired the prescribed certification in respect of said director training.
23 The position of internal auditor is vacant since April 2021.
24 The Chief Financial Officer also holds the position of Company Secretary.
KARACHI R\»\_)
DATED; MARCH 4, 2022 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
UDIN#: CR202110067dtW4FSRTe

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants  Page -2
BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan regi par ip firm, is a ber of BDO jonal Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of they fonal BDO of o ber firms.,
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SME LEASING LIMITED
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of SME LEASING LIMITED (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes
in equity for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2021 and
of the loss, its other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then
ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Management has recorded a reversal of income tax provision amounting to Rs. 7.979 million during the
year. The legitimate basis of such reversal in terms of supporting documents has not been provided to
us by the management. Recognition criteria for this reversal as income has not been met and we could
not verify the occurrence of such income.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 1.5 to the financial statements which indicates that the Company incurred
net loss after tax for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounting to Rs. 13.399 million (2020: Rs.
57.676 million) and its accumulated loss as at December 31, 2021 amounted to Rs. 361.931 million (2020:
Rs. 348.906 million). The Company's current liabilities aggregating to Rs. 196.022 million (2020: 225.501
million) exceeded the current assets by Rs. 81.882 million (2020: 67.154 million). There is material
uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The
Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 are being prepared on a going
concern basis. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Page - 1
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Emphasis of matter
Without modifying our opinion,

a) We draw attention to Note 1.2 to the financial statements which fully explain the status of the
application filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for renewal of license to
operate as a leasing company.

b) We draw attention to Note 1.3 to the financial statements which fully explains the status of non-
compliance with the Regulation 4 of Non - Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulation, 2008.

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit matter is the matter that in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide any
separate opinion on this matter. In addition to the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’
and the ‘Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern’ section, we have determined the matter
described below to be key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter is as follows:

S.No. | Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Impairment allowance for potential lease
and loan losses

Refer to notes 8, 9 and 14 to the financial
statements and the accounting policy in
notes 5.8 and 5.9 to the financial
statements

The Company's portfolio of net investment
in finance leases and long term finances
and loans amounts to Rs. 275.342 million
and Rs. 53.118 million respectively having
provision of Rs. 132.387 million and Rs.
7.440 million respectively.

We identified the impairment allowance for
potential lease and loan losses as a key
audit matter due to the inherent
uncertainty and judgement used by the
management and compliance of the
applicable regulations issued by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP).

Our audit work included:

e obtaining an  understanding and
evaluating the design of the key controls;

+ performing detailed assessment of the
credit approval procedures of the leases
sanctioned in accordance with the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 and the credit
manual of the Company.

» detailed testing and assessment of
provision/reversal of net investment in |.
finance leases and long-term finances and
loans to ensure that these amounts are in
line with applicable regulations.

* testing a sample of lease portfolio to
ascertain whether the loss event (that is
the point at which impairment is
recognized) had been identified in a
timely manner including, where relevant,
how recoveries have been made and
where impairment has been identified.

Page - 2
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Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Page - 3
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professwnal judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

Other matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants, who through their report dated March 04,2021, expressed a
modified opinion thereon.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s review report is Zulfikar

Ali Causer.
KARACHI o N
paTeD: 0 & MAR 2022 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
UDIN #: AR202110067VgyuBCrR9
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ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 6 3,340,157 3,903,811
Right-of-use asset 7 6,697,288 7,770,109
Net investment in finance leases 8 177,323,371 187,152,253
Long term finances and loans - secured 9 43,914,041 47,385,562
Long-term loans to employees - secured 10 343,921 323,196
Long-term deposits and prepayments 1 787,222 870,558
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 232,406,000 247,405,489
CURRENT ASSETS
Advances 12 2,779,957 5,007,025
Prepayments and other receivables 13 749,393 1,496,938
Current maturity of non current assets 14 107,452,416 150,082,218
Cash and bank balances 15 3,157,864 1,626,307
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 114,139,630 158,212,488
TOTAL ASSETS 346,545,630 405,617,977
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL
100,000,000 (2020: 100,000,000)
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 16 320,000,000 320,000,000
Capital reserves 38,019,277 38,019,277
358,019,277 358,019,277
REVENUE RESERVES
Reserve against future losses 10,447,052 10,447,052
Accumulated losses (361,930,933) (348,905,989)
(351,483,881) (338,458,937)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 6,535,396 19,560,340
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 17 4,020,884 7,214,310
Long-term deposits 8.1 130,202,795 144,177,595
Defined benefit obligations 18 9,764,513 9,164,855
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 143,988,192 160,556,760
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 19 2,736,096 5,040,042
Mark-up accrued on borrowings 20 4,209,212 4,211,211
Short term borrowings - secured 21 137,183,616 144,790,638
Current maturity of non-current liabilities 22 44,918,469 57,381,913
Current maturity of liabilities against finance lease assets 17 3,594,336 2,913,768
Provision for compensated absences 23 3,045,411 2,959,558
Taxation - net 334,902 8,203,747
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 196,022,042 225,500,877
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 346,545,630 405,617,977
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 from an integral part of these financial statements.
\ o (- e
: V
Asghar Maqgsood Javed Mehmood M. Shahzad

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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REVENUE

Income from operations

Other income

EXPENSES

Administrative and general

Finance cost

Operating loss before reversals / (provisions)
Write back of / (provision for) potential lease losses
Reversal of income tax provision

Reversal of / (provision for) on loans and receivables
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

TAXATION

LOSS FORTHE YEAR

Loss per share - basic and diluted

25

26

27

28

8.6

9.2

29

30

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 from an integral part of these financial statements.

o

Asghar Magsood
Chief Executive Officer
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Javed Mehmood
Director

21,303,331

90,277

21,393,608

(44,090,102)
(18,489,464)

21,583,297

371,609

21,954,906

(62,579,566)

(41,185,958)

43,681,689
21,569,869

16,426,638
7,979,392
3,648,177

43,296,652

28,054,207

(13,131,751)

(267,420)

(13,399,171)

(0.42)

whma—r
2kt

M. Shahzad

( )
( )
(65,251,558)
( )
( )

12,461,567

(1,594,618)

(14,056,185)

(57,352,837)

(323,749)

(57,676,586)

(1.80)

Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended December 31, 2021

Loss for the year (13,399,171) (57,676,586)
Other comprehensive income S -

Items that will be reclassified to profit and
loss account in subsequent years

Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation 18 374,227 128,862

Total comprehensive loss for the year (13,024,944) (57,547,724)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 from an integral part of these financial statements.

N o e

Asghar Maqgsood Javed Mehmood M. Shahzad
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For The Year Ended December 31, 2021

Capital reserves

Revenue reserves

Issued, Share Statutory Reserve Accumu-
subscribed premium reserves against lated Total
and future losses shareholders’
paid-up losses equity
share capital
(Rupees)

Balance as at January 01, 2020 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (291,358,265) 77,108,064
Total Comprehensive loss for the

year ended December 31, 2020
Loss for the year - (57,676,586) (57,676,586)
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation - 128,862 128,862
Balance as at December 31, 2020 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (348,905,989) 19,560,340
Balance as at January 01, 2021 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (348,905,989) 19,560,340
Total Comprehensive loss for the

year ended December 31, 2021
Loss for the year - (13,399,171) (13,399,171)
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation - 374,227 374,227
Balance as at December 31, 2021 320,000,000 10,000,000 28,019,277 10,447,052 (361,930,933) 6,535,396

The annexed notes from 1to 41 from an integral part of these financial statements.

N ot o e e
. V\
Asghar Maqsood Javed Mehmood M. Shahzad
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation (13,131,751) (57,352,837)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortization 27 3,594,888 3,579,845
Gratuity expense 18.2 1,761,032 1,722,387
Provision for compensated absences 23 1,384,461 1,524,411
Finance cost 28 18,437,187 21,569,869
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 26 (38,000) (310,128)
Potential lease losses written back 8.6 (16,426,638) 12,461,567
Reversal of income tax provision (7,979,392) -
Credit losses on loans and receivables reversal 9.2 (3,648,177) 1,594,618
(2,914,639) 42,142,569
Operating loss before working capital changes (16,046,390) (15,210,268)
Movement in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Net investment in lease 64,452,510 48,409,860
Finances and loans 11,610,385 11,893,462
Long-term loans to employees - secured (78,600) 599,710
Prepayments and other receivables 747,545 (545,784)
Long-term deposits and prepayments 83,336 291,852
Long term deposits paid (26,438,244) (22,576,525)
Advances 2,227,068 (1,637,067)
52,604,000 36,435,508
(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables (2,303,946) 169,804
Unclaimed dividend - (19,694)
(2,303,946) 150,110
Cash generated from operations 34,253,664 21,375,350
Financial charges paid (16,843,325) (19,734,352)
Interest income received 52,277 61,481
Gratuity paid 18.3 (787,147) (51,900)
Benefits paid 23 (1,298,608) (1,065,418)
Taxes paid (156,872) (287,924)
(19,033,675) (21,078,114)
Net cash flows from operating activities 15,219,989 297,236
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure 6 (163,413) (145,600)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 26 38,000 1,766,000
Net cash (used in)/flows from investing activities (125,413) 1,620,400
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid (5,955,997) (3,713,326)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,955,997) (3,713,326)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,138,579 (1,795,690)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (143,164,331) (141,368,641)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33 (134,025,752) (143,164,331)
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 from an integral part of these financial statements.
\ oS- (- Pl
. V
Asghar Maqgsood Javed Mehmood M. Shahzad
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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1

50

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

SME Leasing Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on July 12, 2002 as an unlisted public company and
acquired the status of a listed company on December 13, 2006. The Company is a subsidiary of SME Bank Limited (the
Parent Company), who holds 73.14% (2020: 73.14%) of the Company's shares. At the time of incorporation, the Company
was a wholly owned subsidiary of SME Bank Limited, whereby under an arrangement the assets and liabilities of the
leasing division of SME Bank Limited were transferred to the Company on January 28, 2003. The Company is listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange and its registered office is situated at 56-F, Nazim-ul-Din Road F-6/1, Blue Area, Islamabad. The
core objective of the Company is to extend lease and working capital financing facilities to small and medium enterprises
of the country. The PACRA Credit Rating Agency has assigned a long term rating of B- (2020: B) and a short-term rating
of A4 (2020: B) to the Company in the month of April 2021.

The license of the company to operate as a leasing company expired on May 20, 2019. Thereafter, the Company applied
via application reference # SMEL/MO/2019 dated April 16, 2019 for its renewal in the manner so required by the NBFC
rules, 2003. However, renewal of license was in progress till the year end.

The Company obtained license of non deposit taking NBFC and as per section 4 (Schedule 1) of NBFC Regulations 2008,
a non deposit taking NBFC shall have minimum equity of Rs 50 million. The Company being non deposit taking, the
Company has not complied with said requirement of NBFC Regulations 2008 of maintaining minimum capital requirement.

The Company is dependent on the running finance facility granted by the Parent company. The revised prudential
regulation of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) applicable from June 2015 has restricted the exposure by a bank to a related
party to the extent of 7.5% of its equity. However, SBP on letter BPRD/BA&CPD/646/332/20 dated January 06, 2020 had
granted relaxation to the Parent Company of the aforesaid requirement, which had expired on December 31, 2019. In
prior year, the Parent Company has requested SBP to allow exemption form related party exposure limit till December
31,2021 and correspondence regarding this is in progress till the current period end. However, no intimation has so far
been received from SBP in this regard.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company has incurred loss for the year of Rs. 13.399 million (December
31, 2020: Rs. 57.676 million), resulting in accumulated losses of Rs. 361.931 million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 348.906
million) at the end of the year. Further, the net assets of the Company amounts to Rs. 6.535 million as at December 31,
2021 (December 31, 2020: Rs. 19.560 million). The Company has negative cash and cash equivalent of Rs. 134.026 million
(December 31, 2020: Rs. 143.164 million) which comprise of running finance facility from SME Bank Limited and at the
end of the year the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 81.882 million (2020: Rs. 67.288 million).

These factors along with other factors may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and the Company may not be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

However, these financial statements are prepared by management using going concern assumption considering the
factors mentioned below:

- The Parent Company has granted a short term running finance facility to the Company amounting to Rs. 150 million
out of which Rs. 137.184 million has been utilized as at December 31,2021 (2020: Rs. 144.791 million). The said facility
can be extended to the extent of Rs. 300 million as per the standby agreement for finance facility. The Parent company
will not call off the said amount till June 30, 2022 and the Parent company will facilitate, assist and support the
Company in arrangement of finance from external sources as and when required by the Company.

- The management of the Company has prepared cash flow projections which reflect that based on financial support
by the Parent company the Company will be able to continue its business on going concern basis in the foreseeable
future.

- Concerted efforts are being made for the recovery of non-performing leases and loans and finances and in this respect
during the year Rs. 51.468 million (2020: Rs. 20.714 million) has been recovered.

- Efforts are also being made by the management to reduce the overall operational cost of the Company.
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Based on the above mentioned financial measures and the concerted operational measures being taken by the Company,
the management is confident that the Company would be able to survive in the foreseeable future and therefore, has
prepared the financial statements on going concern basis.

1.6 With respect to privatization of the Parent Company, SME Bank Limited (Bank) and its Subsidiary, the Cabinet Committee
on Privatization (CCOP) approved the new privatization program of the Bank on March 06, 2019 to divest the Government
of Pakistan (GOP) equity stake in the Bank along with management control to a strategic investor as per the decision
dated November 19, 2018 of the GOP, whereas the due process was started and various stakeholders participated
including the prospective investors. However, due to lack of interest of prospective investors, Board of Privatization
Commission in its meeting held on November 25, 2021 has recommended delisting of SME Bank Limited from list of
privatizations. The Financial Adviser (FA) of Privatization Commission asserted that despite all efforts and iterative
interactions with the pre-qualified bidders to date positive feedback from the pre- qualified bidders is not forthcoming
and owing to the deteriorating financial position of Bank, the FA recommended to shelve the Transaction. Recommendation
of the Board of Privatization was presented to the CCOP in its meeting held on December 31, 2021, where the CCOP
decided to ascertain the way forward of the bank prior to delisting from list of privatization; and in this regard constituted
a committee consisting of Deputy Governor SBP, Secretary Finance, Secretary Privatization Commission, Chairman SECP
and Minister of Finance. The Committee has not yet met for any deliberation in this regard.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Gross lease and loans and finances disbursements 2.1 17,704,000 27,000,000

Recoveries 2.2 83,255,855 79,532,814

2.1 This represents amount disbursed against new leases written during the year.

2.2 This represents recoveries from non-performing loans amounting to Rs. 51.468 million (2020: Rs. 20.714 million) and
regular parties amounting to Rs. 31.787 million (2020: Rs. 58.818 million).

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment
and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 (the NBFC Regulations). In case where requirements differ, the provision or directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017, NBFC Rules, 2003 and NBFC Regulations, 2008 shall prevail.

3.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that defined benefit liability,
compensated absences and liabilities against asset subject to finance lease, which is carried at present value. These
financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency. The figures are rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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3.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
requires management to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The significant judgments made by the management in applying the accounting policies and the key sources of estimating
uncertainty were the same as those applied to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are described in the
following:

- Classification and provision of net investment in finance lease and loans and finances (notes 5.8, 5.9, 8 and 9);

- Impairment of non-financial assets (note 5.13);

- Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of property and equipment, right of use asset and
intangibles (note 5.2,5.3,5.6,6 and 7 );

- Provision for current and deferred taxation and recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
(notes 5.16 and 29); and

- Staff retirement benefits (note 5.8 and 18) and Staff compensated absences (note 5.7 and 23).

4 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING
AND REPORTING STANDARDS

4.1 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended December
31,2021

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended December 31, 2021. These
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.
effective date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid - 19 related rent concessions June 01,2020

Interest Rate Bench march Reform - Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) January 1, 2021

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.
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4.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or
after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant
to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other
than certain additional disclosures.

effective date
Standard or Interpretation
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual framework January 01, 2022

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Extended practical relief regarding
Covid - 19 related rent concessions April 01,2021

Amendments to IAS 1'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of Accounting Policies January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' -
Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' -
Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract January 01, 2022

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1  First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards; and
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

4.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are notified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standard have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are notified
by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)

Financial Instruments - IFRS 9 June 30, 2022
The SECP has issued S.R.0. 800(1)/2021 and has extended the effective date for applicability of International Financial
Reporting Standard - Financial Instruments (IFRS-9) in place of International Accounting Standard (IAS-39) (Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) for Non-Banking Finance Companies from reporting period/year ending
on or after June 30, 2022.
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An extensive assessment is required to be made, because the actual impact of adopting IFRS 9 on or after June 30, 2022
may results in changes as:

- IFRS 9 requires the Company to revise its accounting processes and internal controls and these changes are not yet
complete including consequential changes to its governance framework;

- The company is refining and finalizing its models for ECL calculations mainly for finance lease receivables and finances
loans; and

IFRS 9 requires the Company to revise its accounting processes and internal controls and these changes are not yet
complete;

- The company is refining and finalizing its models for ECL calculations mainly for finance lease receivables and finances
loans; and

- The new accounting policies, assumptions, judgements and estimation techniques employed are subject to change
until the Company finalizes its financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2022.

IFRS 9 contains requirements in the following areas:

- Classification and Measurement: Financial assets are classified by reference to the business model within which they
are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics of IFRS 9 introduces a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ category for certain debt instruments.

- Impairment: IFRS 9 introduces an ‘expected credit loss’ model for the measurement of the impairment of financial
assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before a credit loss is recognized.

The Board of Directors anticipate that classification and measurement of debt instruments will be driven by the entity’s
business model for managing the financial asset and contractual cash flows of financial assets.

A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if the objective of the business model to hold the financial assets for
the collection of contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represent the payments
of principal and interest (SPPI). A debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the
objective of the business model is to hold financial statements both to collect contractual cash flows from SPPI and to
sell. All other debt instruments must be recognized at fair value through profit or loss. The Board of Directors anticipate
that majority of financial assets and liabilities would be classified at amortized cost.

The application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 may result in recognition of credit losses for the respective
financial assets and finance lease receivables and may increase the amount of loss allowance for these items. The Board
of Directors anticipate transition impact analysis as financial assets and finance lease receivables under IFRS 9 indicate
that the expected credit loss as per IFRS 9 might be more than the cumulative loss allowance as per the current regulatory
requirements for impairment as at December 31, 2021. However, the transaction impact will be reported in the subsequent
reporting period.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

5.1

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and balances in current and savings bank accounts. Short term
running finance that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management, are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to statement
of profit or loss by using the straight line method at the rates specified in note 6 after taking into account residual value,
if any. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no depreciation is charged
in the month in which the assets are disposed off. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of the each reporting period..

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other subsequent costs including repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as and when incurred.

Gains or losses on sale of assets are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets
are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment
(i.e,, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Intangible

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amortization is charged using the
straight line method over its estimated useful life at the rate specified in note 8 after taking into account residual value,
if any. The residual values, useful lives and amortization methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each
reporting date. Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts only when it is probable that future benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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5.7

5.8

Amortization on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no amortization is charged in the
month in which the assets are disposed off.

Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the statement of profit or loss .
Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. Monthly
contributions are made to the fund equally by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8 % of basic salary. The
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they become due.

Staff retirement benefits are payable to employees on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service under
the scheme.

Employees' compensated absences

The Company accounts for its liability towards accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render service
that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences.

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme covering all of its permanent employees who
have completed the qualifying period under the scheme. The scheme is administered by the trustees and contributions
therein are made in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.

The valuation in this regard is carried out at each year end, using the Projected Unit Credit Method for the valuation of
the scheme. Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income based on actuarial gains and losses.

The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the year by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual year to the net defined benéefit liability,
taking into account and change in the net defined benefit liability during the year as a result of contribution and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expense related to defined benefit plans are recognized in statement of profit
or loss.

Net investment in finance lease

Leases where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets
to the lessees, are classified as finance leases.

The leased asset is derecognized and the present value of the lease receivable is recognized on the statement of financial
position date. The difference between the gross lease receivables and the present value of the lease receivables is
recognized as unearned finance income. A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value of the
minimum lease payments under the lease agreements, including guaranteed residual value, if any.

Each lease payment received is applied against the gross investment in the finance lease receivable to reduce both the
principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on a basis
account that reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging finance leases are added to finance lease
receivables and are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss over the lease term on the same basis
as the finance lease income.
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5.9

5.10

5.11

Provision for potential lease losses and doubtful loans and receivables

Specific provision for potential lease losses and doubtful loans and receivables are made based in the appraisal of each
lease or loan on the basis of the requirements of the NBFC Regulations.

Financial assets and liabilities

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company losses control of contractual rights that
comprises the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to
statement of profit or loss directly.

Financial assets carried at the reporting date includes cash and bank balances, long term finances and loans, net investment
in finance leases, deposits and other receivables.

Financial liabilities carried at the reporting date includes short term borrowing, long term finances, liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease, accrued, and trade and other payables.

Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and include transaction
costs except for held for trading investments in which case transaction costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss . All purchase and sale of investments that require delivery within the required time frame established by regulations
or market convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the Company commits to purchase
or sell the investments. These are recognized and classified as follows:

Investment at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading)
At the time of acquisition, quoted investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from
short term fluctuations in price or are part of portfolio for which there is a recent actual pattern of short term profit taking

are classified as held for trading.

Subsequent to initial recognition these are premeasured at fair value by reference to quoted market prices with the
resulting gain or loss being included in net profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Available-for-sale

These are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized directly in equity. Gains or losses on
revaluation of available-for-sale investments are recognized directly in equity until the investments are sold or other wise
disposed off, or until the investments are determined to be impaired, at which time cumulative gain or loss previously

reported in the equity is included in current year's statement of profit or loss .

All investments classified as available-for-sale are initially recognized at cost inclusive of transaction costs and subsequently
quoted investments are marked to market using the last quoted rate at the close of the financial year.

Held to maturity

At the time of acquisition, investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and the ability to
hold to maturity, are classified as held to maturity.

Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment in value, if any amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition by using the effective yield method.

The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held to maturity investments is amortized
and taken to the statement of profit or loss over the term of the investment.
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5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged to the
statement of profit or loss .

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
These are initially recognized at fair value plus any related transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at amortized cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss .

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently premeasured at fair value. All derivative financial instruments are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss .

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends to either settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Taxation
Taxation charge in the statement of profit or loss comprises of current and deferred tax.
Current

Provisions for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under presumptive / final
tax regime and minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, wherever applicable, at the applicable
tax rates and remaining income streams chargeable at current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime after taking
into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arise from past events
but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision are reviewed at each
reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Long term finances

Long term finances are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the consideration received together with the
associated transaction cost.

Subsequently, these are carried at amortized cost using effective interest method. Transaction cost relating to the long
term finance is being amortized over the period of agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue recognition

- The Company follows the finance lease method in accounting for the recognition of lease income. Under this
method, the unearned lease income i.e. the excess of gross lease rentals and the estimated residual value over
the cost of the leased assets is deferred and taken to income over the term of the lease contract, so as to produce
a systematic return on the net investment in finance lease. Unrealized lease income is held in suspense account,
where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations.

- Front-end fees and documentation charges are taken to income when realized.

- Income on investments is accounted for on accrual basis.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Income on loans and finances is accounted for on accrual basis using effective interest method.

- Unrealized lease income and unrealized income on loans and finances is held in suspense account, where
necessary, in accordance with requirements of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations).

- Profit on bank deposit and short term placements is accrued on a time proportion basis.

- Gain or loss arising on sale of investments are taken to income in the period in which they arise.

- Other income is recognized on receipt basis.

Earnings / (loss) per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by

dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary share holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves

Dividend distribution (including stock dividend) to the Company's shareholders and transfer between reserves, except

appropriations which are required under law, are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such
dividends are declared or such transfers between reserves are made.
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5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

Capital and revenue reserves
Share premium

The share premium was recorded in the year 2006 on issue of shares in accordance with requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 the repealed Ordinance. This premium is available for restrictive use as per section 81 of the Companies
Act 2017.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations, an amount of not less than 20% of after tax profits shall
be transferred to statutory reserve till such time when the reserve equals the amount of paid-up capital, and thereafter
a sum of not less than 5 percent shall be transferred. Consequently, during the current year the Company has transferred
an amount of Rs. nil due to loss (2020: Rs. nil) to its statutory reserve.

Reserve against future losses

This reserve represents amounts set aside in view of the risks associated with the economic cyclical nature of the business
and is recognized as an appropriation of retained earnings. Any credits resulting from reduction of such amounts result
in an increase in unappropriated profit and are not included in the determination of profit or loss for the period. The
amount to be set aside against future losses is determined at the rate of 0.5 % of the outstanding balance of the regular
portfolio of leases and loans and receivables at each reporting date. This was applicable when the Company was deposit
taking NBFC till year 2008, however, subsequently when the status of the Company changed from deposit taking NBFC
to non-deposit taking NBFC, this policy is no more applicable. Therefore, no such reserve has been created by the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. Management monitors
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment results, assets and liabilities include item directly attributable to segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Deposits and prepayments

These are initially recognised at cost being the fair value of the consideration paid. Subsequently, these are stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any which equals to the fair value of the consideration to be received in future.

Accrued and other payables

Accrued expenses and other payables are carried at cost which equals to the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for goods or services received.

Expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or at the date of their
origin.

Other receivables

Other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any which equals to the fair value of the consideration to
be received in future.

Finance cost

Finance cost on short term borrowings and lease liabilities is recognised in statement of profit or loss as and when
accrued. It also includes transaction charges incurred on bank accounts.




S o
g
~
E LL8'E06'E  188'z8S'SL  (00S'LL) VLL'ZSL  L9T'8Y8'WL 169'98Y'6L (00S'ZL)  009'Stl 165'8SE'61
g
< 0z - 0SL'LbSY - - 0SL'LbS'y | |oSLizvsy| | - - 0SL'LYSY S9PIY3A J010
€e'€E |05V LZ0'L8Y'L - 655'7Z ov'ssy’L| |Lzs'ses'l| | - 000'8Z LTS'L6'L s1enduwod
s sso'sve's| | 9€s'soL’9 - oLs'scy | |9ze'e89's | |o6LvLs's| | - - 06L'VLS'6 sasiwaid 240
€€'€e - £€6'0SL - - €€6'0SL | |€€6'0SL - - £€6'0SL syuawanoidwi Buipjing
SL €60'76€ LzL'isiL’L (0o0s’z1L) LLE'ETL 0SZ'st0’L | |€LT'sys’L| [(00S°LL) 008°0LL €L6'LSY'L swdinba 140
0z LSS'9LL 0zL'L8t'L - YLY'OEL ov9'ose’L | |8Lo'€09’L| | - 0089 8£8'965'L $9INIXIY pue uNYUINg
paumo
% (saadny)
wnuue ,
pdaer g0z 020t A AT spuen 0L
(7, uonepaidag  ‘Lgreqlesy ‘Le29qesy [esodsip ug 1eaf ayy Jo4 Jenuer %QqIesy |esodsig /suonIppy denuer |
T ae .. sy jesy 0202
i & N NOILYID34d3a G3LYINWNDDY 1500
25 @ %004
=5
i Q@
2i o LSL'OVE'S  €SY'6VL'OL  (S6'09L)  £90°LTL 188'Z8S'SL 609'68Y'6L (S6¥'09L)  ELY'€9L 169'98'61
2 B
wv) 0z Ss€'98 00Z'L6E'Y| |(S6v'0oL)| | SS'b 0SL'LbS'y | |sss'LLv'y| |(sev'0oL)| | 006°06 0SL'LYS'Y SaPIYA JOIOW
— €E'EE 9€T'TT L62'€0S’L = 0£2'TT LZo‘L8Y’'L | |LTS'STS’L = = £TS'STS’L si2Indwod
© _ S 9v6'7L8'T| | SYT'LY'D - 60L'sLy | |9gs'soL'9 | |o6LyLS'6| | - - 06L'7LS'6 sasiwaid 2140
‘O ge'ee - £€6'0SL - - £6'0SL | |€€6'0SL - - £€6'0SL sjuawanoidwi Buipjing
c sl L9z'1Z€ 99¥'LLT'L - sve‘ozL LzuisLL| |ozz'zes't| | - ELS'LY ELT'SPS'L wawdinbs 9210
[ I 0z 6SE'LE 8LE'L6S'L - 861701 ozL'8y'L| |8Lo'szo’l| | - 000'SZ 8£9'€09'L S2UNIX1J pue InjuIng
.m W paumoQ
L m % (s9adny)
e W wnuue ,
S5 edom e o L0218 puen (T
o m uonepaidag  ‘Lgr8q@lesy L£23q1esy [esodsip up 1eaf 3yy Jo4 sy %nQqilesy |esodsiqg /suonippy Jesy 1207
- nTvA NOILYID3443a G3LYINWNIIY 1502
v 3 %004
.m W AINIWdIND3 ANY AL¥IdOYd 9
O
20




SME Leasing Limited (A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2021

7

71

62

2021

Office premises

Motor vehicles

2020

Office premises

Motor Vehicles

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

CoST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BOOK VALUE
Asat Adjustmenton  Additions/ Disposal Asat Asat Forthe Ondisposal Asat Asat
January 1, transition to transfer 31December January1,  year Dec31,  Dec31,
2021 IFRS 16 2021 2021 2021 2021
(Rupees)
12,950,191 - - - 12,950,191 5,180,082 2,590,044 - 7,770,126 5,180,065
- - 1,795,000 - 1,795,000 - 277,777 - 277,777 1,517,223
12,950,191 - 1,795,000 - 14,745,191 5,180,082 2,867,821 - 8,047,903 6,697,288
CoST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BOOK VALUE
Asat Adjustmenton  Additions/ Disposal Asat Asat Forthe Ondisposal Asat Asat
January 1, transition to transfer 31December January1,  year Dec31,  Dec31,
2020 IFRS 16 2020 2020 2020 2020
(Rupees)
12,950,191 - - - 12,950,191 2,590,044 2,590,038 - 5,180,082 7,770,109
1,782,700 - - 1,782,700 - 89,135 237,693 (326,828)
14,732,891 - - 1,782,700 12,950,191 2,679,179 2,827,731 (326,828) 5,180,082 7,770,109

Particulars of Disposal of Right of used assets

Motor Vehicle
Suzuki Cultus

Original Accumulated Written Sales Profit / Mode of Particulars Relationship
Cost Depreciation Down Proceeds (Loss) on Disposal of Buyer
Value Disposal
(Rupees)
1,782,700 326,828 1,455,872 1,760,000 304,128 Insurance claim  Insurance  Third party
Company
1,782,700 326,828 1,455,872 1,760,000 304,128
Note 2021 2020

NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES

Net investment in finance leases 8.1 275,342,507 323,368,379
Less: Current maturity 14 (98,019,136) (136,216,126)
177,323,371 187,152,253
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9.1 Netinvestmentin finance leases

December 31, 2021 December 31,2020
Later than one N::‘Iater Later than one No;later
Total year and less an Total year and less than
than five years oneyear than five years ~ ONeYear
(Rupees)
Minimum lease payments 8.3 286,239,684 227,716,296 58,523,388 332,473,338 252,615,664 79,857,674
Add: Residual Value of leased assets 8.4 174,748,031 130,202,795 44,545,236 201,186,275 144,177,595 57,008,680
Gross Investment in leases 460,987,715 357,919,091 103,068,624 533,659,613 396,793,259 136,866,354
Less: Unearned lease Income (8,728,447) || (3,678,959) (5,049,488)| | (12,813,448)|| (12,163,220) (650,228)
Less: Markup held in
Suspense Account (44,530,019) | | (44,530,019) - (48,664,406)|| (48,664,406) -
(53,258,466) (48,208,978) (5,049,488) (61,477,854) (60,827,626) (650,228)
407,729,249 309,710,113 98,019,136 472,181,759 335,965,633 136,216,126
Less: Provision for potential
lease losses 8.6 (132,386,742) (132,386,742) - (148,813,380) (148,813,380) -
Net Investment in Finance leases 275,342,507 177,323,371 98,019,136 323,368,379 187,152,253 136,216,126

8.2 The internal rate of return (IRR) on lease contract receivable ranges from 9.5% to 25% per annum (2020: 9.5% to 25% per

annum).

8.3 This include amount receivable in respect of non performing leases of Rs. 190.664 million (2020: Rs. 199.204 million)
which have not been fully provided due to forced sales value benefit amounting to Rs. 85.188 million (2020: Rs. 87.345

million).

8.4 These represent interest free security deposits received against lease contracts and are refundable / adjustable at the
expiry / termination of the respective leases. The amount is net of security deposit held against non-performing leases

amounting to Rs. 143.907 million (2020: Rs. 144.988 million).

8.5 Lease rentals received during the year aggregate to Rs. 51.866 million (2020: Rs. 79.533 million). Lease disbursed during

the year amounts to Rs. 11.004 million (2020: Rs. 27 million).

63




SME Leasing Limited (A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2021

8.6 Provision for potential lease losses

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision for the year

Recovered during the year

Net provision

Balance at the end of the year

9 LONG TERM FINANCES AND LOANS - SECURED
Customers
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful finances and loans - net

Less: Current maturity
Customers

9.1

9.3
9.2

14

148,813,380 136,351,813
2,038,658 29,052,904
(18,465,296) (16,591,337)
(16,426,638) 12,461,567
132,386,742 148,813,380
12,489,003 20,351,243
48,069,911 51,818,056
60,558,914 72,169,299
(7,440,473) (11,088,650)
53,118,441 61,080,649
(9,204,400) (13,695,087)
43,914,041 47,385,562

9.1 These represent loans to customers for a period of three to five years on mark-up basis and are secured by way of
hypothecation of stock and immovable property. The rate of mark-up ranges from 15% to 24.50% (2020: 11.35% to

17.33%) per annum.

9.2 Provision for doubtful finances and loans - net

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision for the year

Recovered during the year

Net provision

Balance at the end of the year

11,088,648 9,494,030
= 5,718,015
(3,648,177) (4,123,397)
(3,648,177) 1,594,618
7,440,471 11,088,648

9.3 This includes non performing loans of Rs. 48.70 million (2020: Rs. 59.140 million) which have not been fully provided due

to FSV benefits amount to Rs. 63.184 million (2020: 63.832 million).
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10 LONG-TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES - SECURED
Considered good

Car loans

Less: Current maturity

10.1 Movement in loan to employees

Balance at the beginning of the year
Disbursements

Repayments

Balance at the end of the year

10.1&10.2
14

572,801

494,201
447,252

(368,652)
572,801

(228,880)
343,921

494,201
(171,005)
323,196

1,093,911
49,500
(649,210)

494,201

10.2 These represent car loans given to employees. These loans are recovered through deduction from salaries over varying
periods up to a maximum period of 20 years. These loans are granted to the employees in accordance with their terms
of employment. Car loans are secured by the title of car in the Company's name. These loans carry mark-up at 5% to 7%

(2020: 5% to 7 %) per annum.

11 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Other deposits

Prepayments

Less: Current maturity

Non-current prepayments

11.1 Other deposits

Rent

Central Depository Company
Miscellaneous

BRR Security Vault

12 ADVANCES

Considered good - unsecured
Employees

Legal advisors

Others

Advance against lease vehicle
SBP deposit

1.1 787,222 787,222
= 864,004

13 - (780,668)
= 83,336

787,222 870,558

711,000 711,000

50,000 50,000

14,422 14,422

11,800 11,800

787,222 787,222

12.1 466,858 1,678,710
12.2 2,175,980 2,289,853
122,119 137,426

= 886,036

15,000 15,000

2,779,957 5,007,025
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12.1 These represents interest free advances given to employees against salaries. These are recovered through monthly
deductions from salaries over a period of one year from the date of disbursement.

12.2 These represents advance payments made to the legal advisors of the Company for handling the cases on behalf of the
Company.

13 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments 622,659 780,668
Other receivable 65,000 65,000
Accrued interest on long term finances and loans 61,734 651,270

749,393 1,496,938

14 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON CURRENT ASSETS

Current maturity of :

Net investment in finance leases 8 98,019,136 136,216,126
Long term finances and loans 9 9,204,400 13,695,087
Long term loans to employees 10 228,880 171,005

107,452,416 150,082,218

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Balances with banks in:

- Current accounts 3,091,452 1,466,000
- Saving accounts 15.1 - 93,895
Cash in hand 66,412 66,412

3,157,864 1,626,307

15.1 These carry profit rate of nil (2020: 5.5% to 11.25% per annum).

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020
(Number of shares)

10,100,000 10,100,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 101,000,000 101,000,000
issued as fully paid in cash

19,900,000 19,900,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 199,000,000 199,000,000
issued as fully paid for
consideration other than cash

2,000,000 2,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 20,000,000 20,000,000

issued as fully paid bonus shares

32,000,000 32,000,000 320,000,000 320,000,000
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17

18

16.1 SME Bank Limited (the Bank) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on October 30, 2001 under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 having its registered office at 56-F, Nazim-ud-Din Road, F-6/1, Blue Area Islamabad. The Bank
obtained its business commencement certificate on April 16, 2005 which became effective from the date of its issue. The
Bank is a Scheduled Commercial Bank engaged in the business of banking with primary objective to support and develop
Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) sector in Pakistan by providing necessary financial assistance and business support
services on sustainable basis. At December 31, 2021, the Parent company and its nominees hold 73.14% (2020: 73.14%)

ordinary shares of the Company.

LIABILITIES AGAINST FINANCE LEASE ASSETS

Payable not later than one year
Payable later than one year

but not later than five years
Total

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

2021 2020

Minimum Finance Present Minimum Finance Present
lease charges not value of lease charges not  value of
payment due yet minimum payment due yet minimum

lease lease

payments payments

-------------- (Rupees) -------------- -------—-——-- (Rupees) -----------—---
4,535,365 941,029 3,594,336 4,200,835 1,287,067 2,913,768
4,376,388 355,504 4,020,884 8,392,048 1,177,738 7,214,310
8,911,753 1,296,533 7,615,220 12,592,883 2,464,805 10,128,078

The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme for all of its permanent employees. Number of employees
covered under the scheme are 23 (2020: 27).

Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation of the gratuity scheme was carried out on December 31, 2021 by Nauman Associates using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. The following significant assumptions were used for valuation of the scheme:

2021 2020

Valuation discount rate

Expected long term rate of increase in salary level

9.75%
11.75%

11.25%
11.25%

18.1 Liability in statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation 18.2
18.2 Movement in liability during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year
Charged to statement of profit or loss account 27.1
Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income
18.5

Benefits paid during the year
Balance at the end of the year

9,764,513

9,164,855
1,761,032

(374,227)
(787,147)

9,764,513

9,164,855

7,623,230
1,722,387

(128,862)

(51,900)
9,164,855
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18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

18.7

68

Reconciliation of the present value
of defined benefit obligations

Present value of obligations at beginning of the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurements gain chargeable in other comprehensive income

Present value of obligations at the end of the year
Charged to statement of profit or loss account
Current services cost
Interest cost
Remeasurements gain chargeable in
other comprehensive income
Actuarial losses/(gains) on obligation
Experience adjustment

Total re-measurements recognized in other
comprehensive income

9,164,855
905,832
855,200

(787,147)

(374,227)

9,764,513

905,832
855,200

1,761,032

24,973
(399,200)

(374,227)

7,623,230
867,693
854,694
(51,900)

(128,862)

9,164,855

867,693
854,694

1,722,387

(19,855)
(109,007)

(128,862)

Based on the actuarial advice, the Company intends to charge an amount of approximately Rs. 1.917 million in respect

of contribution to gratuity fund in the financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2022.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the employee benefit schemes.
The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each assumption

is summarized below:

Discount rate effect

Original liability
1% increase
1% decrease

Salary increase rate effect
Original liability

1% increase
1% decrease

Rupees

9,764,513
10,740,964
8,788,062

9,764,513
10,740,964
8,788,062

Rate effect

9.75%
10.75%
8.75%

11.75%
12.75%
10.75%
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The sensitivity analysis prepared presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some
of the assumptions may be correlated.

2021 2020
18.8 Maturity profile

The weighted average duration of the obligation (in years) 10 10

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payable on termination/maturity of leases 325,788 2,132,445

Insurance payable 1,619,667 1,829,706

Provident fund payable

Accrued expenses 426,111 798,429

Others 310,467 255,933

Sales tax payable 54,063 23,529
2,736,096 5,040,042

20 MARK-UP ACCRUED ON BORROWINGS

Interest accrued on:
Short term borrowings 20.1 4,209,212 4,211,211

20.1 This amount represents accrued interest payable to the Parent Company.
21 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

Short term borrowings 21.1 137,183,616 144,790,638

21.1  The Company has a running finance facility available from the Parent Company amounting to Rs.150 million (2020:
Rs.150 million) at mark-up rates ranging between 11.35% to 11.65% (2020: 11.35% to 17.33%) per annum. Above
arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation of the Company's specific leased assets and related receivables
of the Company.

22 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term deposits 8.1 44,545,236 57,008,680
Long term finance 22.1 373,233 373,233
44,918,469 57,381,913

22.1 This represents balance due against financing facilities amounting to Rs. 0.373 million (2020: Rs. 0.373 million) from
National Energy Conservation Centre (Enercon). The facilities from Enercon were obtained under an agreement whereby
they agreed to provide funds to the Company for granting lease / finance facility to its customers at a preferential mark-
up rate for procuring and using energy efficient equipments. The facility requires sharing of profit @ 5% of the financing
amount on quarterly basis. However, this facility is no more active.
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24

25
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PROVISION FOR COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations
Present value of defined benefit obligations- Opening
Current service cost

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Benefits paid

Remeasurement

- Actuarial losses/(gains) from changes in assumptions

- Experience adjustments

Present value of defined benefit obligations- Closing

Expenses to be charged to statement of profit or loss account

Current service cost

Experience adjustments

Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Expense chargeable to statement of profit or loss account 27.1

Changes in net liability

Statement of financial position liability- Opening

Expenses chargeable to statement of profit or loss account
Benefits paid

Statement of financial position liability- Closing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 Contingencies

2,959,558
1,005,186
225,250
(1,298,608)

7,213
146,812

3,045,411

2,500,565
1,266,197
221,384
(1,065,418)

(5,872)
42,702

1,005,186
146,812
7,213
225,250

2,959,558

1,384,461

1,266,197
42,702
(5,872)
221,384

2,959,558
1,384,461
(1,298,608)

1,524,411

3,045,411

2,500,565
1,524,411
(1,065,418)

2,959,558

A suit has been filed against the Company impleaded it for declaration, injunction and damages amounting to Rs. 3.5
million in the Honurable High Court of Sindh. The evidence of the parties has been completed before the commissioner

and the case is at the stage of final arguments.
24.2 Commitments

There are no commitments at reporting date. (2020: Nil).

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Income from finance leases
Income on finances and loans

10,646,338

10,656,993

21,303,331

17,776,964

3,806,333

21,583,297
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26 OTHERINCOME
Income from financial assets
Mark-up on loan to employees 47,277 59,299

Profit on bank account/return on investment - 6,998

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 38,000 310,128
Other income/(loss) 5,000 (4,816)
90,277 371,609

27 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 27.1 29,049,407 30,075,743
Depreciation 6&7 3,594,888 3,579,845
Legal and professional 3,628,273 2,977,654
Insurance 995,119 1,182,235
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 968,518 958,947
Electricity, gas and water 1,042,373 887,010
Telephone and postage 786,820 759,466
Miscellaneous 683,486 599,259
Auditors' remuneration 27.6 430,400 622,000
Directors' fee 274 545,000 515,000
Printing and stationery 615,828 471,352
Repairs and maintenance 557,988 441,005
Rent, rates and taxes 445,712 257,372
Vehicle running 284,129 218,273
Advertising 411,776 97,363
Books and periodicals 39,885 36,165
Training and development 10,500 3,000

44,090,102 43,681,689

27.1  Salaries allowance and other benefits include:

Staff gratuity fund 18.4 1,761,032 1,722,387
Staff provident fund 750,155 775,716
Compensated absences 23 1,384,461 1,524,411

3,895,648 4,022,514
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27.2 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements, including all benefits, to the Chief Executive Officer and
Executives of the Company are as follows:

2021 2020
Chief . Chief .
. Executives . Executives
Executive Executive
(Rupees)

Managerial remuneration 797,000 2,275,580 1,576,625 2,981,253
Housing and utilities 398,500 1,137,790 500,813 1,490,629
Provident fund 63,760 24,000 26,709 72,000
Medical and other perquisites 1,702,815 588,191 463,343 628,017
Leave encashment 52,400 286,417 - 192,500
3,014,475 4,311,978 2,567,490 5,364,399

Number of person(s) 1 2 1 2

27.3 The Chief Executive Officer and certain executives were also provided with free use of Company owned and maintained
cars in accordance with their terms of employment.

27.4 This represents remuneration paid to the non-executive directors of the Company for attending meetings of the Board
and Board's committees.

27.5 Executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds twelve hundred
thousand rupees in a financial year.

27.6 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee 255,000 285,000
Half yearly review fee 50,000 56,000
9 Month review fee - 56,000
Fee for other certifications 45,000 50,000
Out of pocket expenses 80,400 175,000

430,400 622,000

28 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term borrowings 16,726,118 19,611,282
Interest expense for leasing arrangements 1,648,138 1,835,517
Bank charges 115,208 123,070
18,489,464 21,569,869

29 TAXATION

29.1 Current tax liability

Provision for the current year income tax has been made under the provisions of minimum tax under Section 113 of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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30

31

29.2

29.3

294

Current status of tax assessments

The income tax assessments of the Company for tax year 2012 has been selected for tax audit u/s 214 C of Income tax
ordinance 2001.

In respect of tax year 2012, the tax authorities have served order under section 122(1) read with section 177(1) and
214C of the Ordinance disallowing expenses relating to depreciation allowance, markup on loan to employees and
financial cost and creating tax demand of Rs. 3.8 million. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals-ll) against the said order who decided all the issues in favor of the Company except for initial
allowance on leased asset. The Company has filed second appeal and the appeal has not yet been fixed for hearing.

In respect of minimum tax for the year ended December 31, 2015, the tax authorities have served order under section
124 of the Ordinance for additional amount of minimum tax of Rs. 0.14 million payable due to restatement of turnover
of the Company. The Company has filed application for rectification in the order on the issue of incorrect value of
turnover for the purpose of charging minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance and tax credit not allowed. No
action has been taken by the tax officer yet.

The Company's case, the year 31 December 2015, has been selected for audit under section 214 of the Ordinance. The
taxation officer vide notice issued under section 177 of the Ordinance has called for certain information /documents,
which is being complied by the Company. The taxation office has not passed any order yet."

Deferred tax asset of Rs. 38.155 million (2020: Rs. 43.620 million) has not been recognized as the Company does not
foresee future taxable profits against which unused tax losses will be utilized.

The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that the sufficient
provision for the purpose of taxation is available which can be analyzed as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Tax provision as per accounts 323,749 309,759 349,920
Tax payable/paid as per tax return 287,924 350,627 349,920

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees) (13,399,171) (57,676,586)
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares (No.) 32,000,000 32,000,000
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (Rupees per share) (0.42) (1.80)
30.1 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has no potential ordinary shares outstanding

at the year end.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties of the company comprise of SME Bank Limited (the Parent Company), key management personnel, non-
executive directors and contributory staff retirement benefit plan.
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31.1 Balances

SME Bank Limited (Parent company)
Short term borrowing 21 137,183,616 144,790,638

31.2 Transactions

SME Bank Limited (Parent company)

Mark up on short-term borrowings 28 16,726,118 19,611,282
Short term borrowing facility-net repayment/obtained (7,607,022) 2,634,279
Rent expense paid for Peshawar branch 550,272 550,272

Directors and key management personnel
Compensation of directors and key management personnel

Directors fee paid 545,000 515,000
Key management remuneration 7,326,453 7,931,889
Company's contribution towards provident fund 27.1 750,155 775,716
Total compensation of directors and key management personnel 8,621,608 9,222,605

Unaudited Audited

32 PROVIDENT FUND

Size of the fund (net assets) 5,949,846 5,674,170
Cost of Investment made 6,427,364 5,719,414
Percentage of investment made 108.03% 100.80%
Fair value of investments 6,697,291 5,851,465

All the investments of the Provident Fund are kept in mutual funds.

32.1 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

33 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 15 3,157,864 1,626,307
Short term borrowings 21 (137,183,616) (144,790,638)
(134,025,752) (143,164,331)

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Introduction and overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:
- credit risk;
- liquidity risk; and

- market risk.

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing it.
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34.1

34.1.1

34.1.2

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board
of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitor compliance with the Company's risk management
policies and procedures, and review the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Company. The Company's audit committee is assisted in its oversight by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes
both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the result of which are reported to the
audit committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk
arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political
or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.

Management of credit risk

The Company's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management policies and
the requirements of the NBFC Rules and Regulations. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties, and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter
parties. To reduce the exposure to credit risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit
limits are applied to its customers. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers
and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery (and also obtains security / advance
payments, wherever considered necessary). Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality credit worthiness.

Exposure to credit risk

In summary, compared to the maximum amount included in the statement of financial position, the maximum exposure
to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
amount exposure amount exposure
(Rupees)

Bank balances 3,091,452 3,091,452 1,559,895 1,559,895
Advances 137,119 137,119 152,426 152,426
Net investment in finance lease 275,342,507 275,342,507 323,368,379 323,368,379
Long term finances and loans 53,118,441 53,118,441 61,080,649 61,080,649
Long-term loans to employees 572,801 572,801 494,201 494,201
Deposits and other receivables 852,222 852,222 852,222 852,222
333,114,542 333,114,542 387,507,771 387,507,771
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34.1.3 Credit ratings and collaterals

SME Leasing Limited

(A subsidiary of SME Bank Ltd.)

Details of the credit ratings of balances with the banks (including profit receivable) as at 31 December were

2021 2020

as follows:

Ratings
Al+

A-1+
Others

Settlement risk

0.00%
86.36%

13.64%

100%

0.00%
99.13%
0.87%
100%

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honor its obligations to deliver cash or other
assets as contractually agreed on sale. This risk is addressed more or less in accordance with the parameters
set out in the credit risk management above.

34.1.4

Not past due
1-179 days

180 days - 1 year
More than 1 year

Not past due
1-179 days

180 days - 1 year
More than 1 year

76

Impairment losses and past due balances

2021
Loans Net investment Impairment
Total and in pairi
L . recognised
receivables finance lease
(Rupees)

95,215,206 9,204,400 86,010,806 -
12,070,064 61,734 12,008,330 -
500,830,108 51,292,780 309,710,113 139,827,215
608,115,378 60,558,914 407,729,249 139,827,215
2020

Loans Net investment Impairment
Total and in pairi
X " recognised
receivables finance lease
(Rupees)

130,495,171 13,043,817 117,451,354 .
19,416,042 651,270 18,764,772 -
234,537,815 58,474,212 335,965,633 (159,902,030)
384,449,028 72,169,299 472,181,759  (159,902,030)
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34.1.5 Concentration of credit risk - net investment in finance lease

The Company seeks to manage its credit risk through diversification of financing activities to avoid undue
concentration of credit risk with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or business sectors.

It also obtains collaterals when appropriate.

The management of the Company follows two sets of guidelines. Internally, it has its own policies and
procedures duly approved by the Board of Directors whereas externally it adheres to the regulations issued
by the SECP. The operating policy defines the extent of fund based exposures with reference to a particular

sector or group of leases.

Details of the composition of leases and loans and finances portfolio of the Company are given below:

Category 2021 2020
Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage
Public Transport Services 99,362,614 18.46% 99,353,265 15.86%
Printing & Packaging 40,848,222 7.59% 56,780,997 9.06%
Miscellaneous 43,814,320 8.14% 55,650,938 8.88%
Film Processing 44,799,057 8.32% 47,365,497 7.56%
Oil & Gas 32,668,305 6.07% 42,958,603 6.86%
Food & Beverages 39,176,723 7.28% 40,569,788 6.48%
Health Care 38,209,285 7.10% 40,277,035 6.43%
Garments 26,857,389 4.99% 30,850,275 4.92%
Cargo Carriers 26,715,593 4.96% 29,661,613 4.74%
Entertainment 20,120,072 3.74% 28,862,877 4.61%
Others 25,685,231 4.77% 28,681,331 4.58%
Leather & Tannery 3,772,518 0.70% 17,164,218 2.74%
Engineering 12,710,613 2.36% 16,500,306 2.63%
Textile 13,225,741 2.46% 14,092,568 2.25%
Plastic 14,592,745 2.71% 13,950,099 2.23%
Gems & Jeweler 13,691,662 2.54% 13,781,662 2.20%
Pharma 12,236,745 2.27% 12,236,745 1.95%
Education 6,399,349 1.19% 10,229,377 1.63%
Confectionary 5,215,299 0.97% 9,107,485 1.45%
Communication 6,802,623 1.26% 6,802,623 1.09%
Construction & Building Products 5,192,256 0.96% 5,192,256 0.83%
Chemicals 3,779,865 0.70% 4,086,174 0.65%
Fisheries 1,285,857 0.24% 1,285,857 0.21%
Dates 551,021 0.10% 551,021 0.09%
Furniture 421,872 0.08% 421,872 0.07%
538,134,977 100% 626,414,482 100%
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34.2

34.2.1

34.2.2

78

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected or may face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall
due.

Management of liquidity risk

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Due to nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines
available. The Company’s liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid
assets necessary to fulfill its obligation; monitoring liquidity ratios against internal and external requirements and
maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities
The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at the balance sheet date to maturity date and represents the undiscounted cash flows. The amounts in the
table are the gross nominal undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments).

2021
Total Contractual Upto Two to
cash flow one year five years
(Rupees)
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 2,736,096 2,736,096 2,736,096 -
Lease liability 7,615,220 7,615,220 3,594,336 4,020,884
Short term borrowings 137,183,616 137,183,616 137,183,616 -
Long term finances 373,233 373,233 373,233 -
Long term deposits 174,748,031 174,748,031 44,545,236 130,202,795
Markup accrued 4,209,212 4,209,212 4,209,212 -
326,865,408 326,865,408 192,641,729 134,223,679
2020
Total Contractual Upto Two to
cash flow one year five years
(Rupees)
Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 5,040,042 5,040,042 5,040,042 -
Lease liability 10,128,078 10,128,078 2,913,768 7,214,310

Short term borrowings 144,790,638 144,790,638 144,790,638 -

Long term finances 373,233 373,233 373,233 -
Long term deposits 201,186,275 201,186,275 57,008,680 144,177,595

Markup accrued 4,211,211 4,211,211 4,211,211 -
365,729,477 365,729,477 214,337,572 151,391,905
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34.3

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and
credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit standing) will effect the Company’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

The Company is exposed to interest rate and other price risk only.

34.3.1 Management of market risk

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. The Company manages the market risk by monitoring exposure
on marketable securities by following internal risk management policies and regulations laid down by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

34.3.2 Interest raterisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises on investment in finance lease,
finance and loans, investment in government securities, bank balances and borrowing from banks. The

Company carries a mix of fixed and floating rate financial instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, details of the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial

instruments were as follows:

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Net investments in finance lease

Long term finance and loans

Long-term loans to employees - secured

Financial liabilities

Long term finance

Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets

Bank balances

Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings

Effective Interest
rate %

9.5% to 25%
15% to 24.5%
5% to 7%

0%

17.33% to 18.26%

11.35% to 11.65%

Carrying amount

2021

(Rupees)

275,342,507
53,118,441
572,801

329,033,749

373,233

7,615,220

7,988,453

137,183,616
137,183,616

2020
(Rupees)

323,368,379
61,080,649
494,201
384,943,229

373,233

10,128,078

10,501,311

93,895
93,895

144,790,638
144,790,638
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34.3.3 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the
statement of profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the
statement of profit or loss.
34.3.4 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit
or loss by Rs. 0.137 million (2020: Rs. 0.144 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis which were used for the comparative reporting period.
34.3.5 Interest rate gap position

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments based on the earlier of
contractual re-pricing or maturity date is as follows:

80

2021
Effelftive Exposed to mark-up / interest / profit rate risk
rirr‘:::r-e‘;'t) // More than
rofit rate Total Upto three three months More than
P months and upto one year
one year
% (Rupees)

Financial assets
Long term finances and loans 15%t024.5% 53,118,441 9,204,400 - 43,914,041
Long-term loans to employees - secured 5% to 7% 572,801 - 228,880 343,921
Net investment in finance lease 9.5%to25% 275,342,507 - 98,019,136 177,323,371
Total financial assets as on

December 31, 2021 329,033,749 9,204,400 98,248,016 221,581,333
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 17.33%to 18.26% 7,615,220 598,001 2,996,335 4,020,884
Short term borrowings 11.35% to 11.65% 137,183,616 - 137,183,616 -
Long term finances 0% 373,233 373,233 - -
Total financial liabilities as on

December, 2021 145,172,069 971,234 140,179,951 4,020,884
On statement of financial position gap 183,861,680 8,233,166  (41,931,935) 217,560,449
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 183,861,680 8,233,166  (33,698,769) 183,861,680
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Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Long term finances and loans

Long-term loans to employees - secured

Net investment in finance lease

Total financial assets as on
December 31, 2020

Financial liabilities
Lease liability
Short term borrowings

Long term finances

Total financial liabilities as on
December, 2020

On balance sheet gap

Total interest rate sensitivity gap
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2020
Effective Exposed to mark-up / interest / profit rate risk
mark-up / More th
interest / Upto three threzrﬁ\o:trl‘\s More than
s P
profit rate Total months and upto one year
one year
% (Rupees)
5.5% to 11.25% 93,895 93,895 - -
15% to 27% 61,080,649 13,043,817 - 47,385,562
5% to 7% 494,201 - 171,005 323,196
9.5%t025% 323,368,379 - 136,216,126 187,152,253
385,037,124 13,137,712 136,387,131 234,861,011
17.33% 10,128,078 598,001 2,315,767 7,214,310
10.43% to 17.33% 144,790,638 - 144,790,638 -
0% 373,233 373,233 - -
155,291,949 971,234 147,106,405 7,214,310
229,745,175 12,166,478 (10,719,274) 227,646,701
229,745,175 12,166,478 1,447,204 229,093,905
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34.4

34.5

34.6

82

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market. Presently, the Company is not exposed to equity securities price risk as the Company does not
hold any equity securities as at December 31, 2021 (2020: none).

Fair value and risk management

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value of underlying financial assets are determined based
on requirements of Regulation 66 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and
directives if any, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Fair value of debt instruments other
than Government Securities, which are unlisted or listed but not traded regularly on stock exchange be valued at rates
notified by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan. The fair value of financial assets traded in active market i.e. listed
securities are based on the quoted market price at determined by stock exchange in accordance with its regulations.

The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets and financial liabilities. These fair value
measurements are categorized into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques
used. The different levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in an active market (that are unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques (for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable).

Level 3 — Valuation techniques (for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable).

For financial instruments that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company’s policy
is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. During the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no transfers between
Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 of fair value measurements.
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35 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

35.1

35.2

353

354

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce its cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in the economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividend paid to its shareholders or issue new shares. Consistent with others in the industry, the Company
also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital
employed:

Total debt 7,615,220 10,128,078
Total equity 6,535,396 19,560,340
Total capital employed 14,150,616 29,688,418
Gearing ratio 53.82% 34.11%

As required under the NBFC Regulations, every investment financing company involved in non deposit taking shall
maintain a minimum capital of Rs 50 million, the Company has not complied with said requirement of NBFC Regulations
2008 of maintaining minimum capital requirement.

Capital management objectives and policies
The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with a view
to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize liquidity risk. Taken as a whole, the

Company's risk arising from financial instruments is limited as there is no significant exposure to price and cash flow
risk in respect of such instruments.
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36 SEGMENT INFORMATION

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in business activities from which the Company
earns revenues and incur expenses and its results are regularly reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Further, discrete financial

information is available for each segment.

The Company's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore finance lease, loans and receivables, and investments.

All assets and liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than assets and liabilities not directly related to the particular

segment.

Segment revenue
Reversal of provision
Segment result

Unallocated cost
Finance cost

Administrative and general expenses

Loss before tax
Provision for taxation
Loss for the year

Other information
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Capital expenditure

2021
Finance Loans and Others Total
lease receivables
(Rupees)

10,646,338 10,656,993 90,277 21,393,608
16,426,638 3,648,177 7,979,392 28,054,207
27,072,976 14,305,170 8,069,669 49,447,815
- - - (18,489,464)

- - - (44,090,102)
(62,579,566)

- o - (13,131,751)

- - - (267,420)
- - - (13,399,171)

8,214,867

275,342,507 53,118,441 - 328,460,948
- - 18,084,682 18,084,682
346,545,630

176,793,809 - - 176,793,809
- - 163,216,425 163,216,425

340,010,234

- - - 6,535,396

- - 163,413 163,413

36.1 Revenue reported above represents revenue from external customers. There are no inter-segment sales.

36.2 Revenue from finance lease includes income from finance lease operations and gain/loss on termination of lease.

Revenue from loans and receivable includes mark-up income on loans to customers and employees.
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37

2020
Finance Loans and Others Total
lease receivables
(Rupees)

Segment revenue 17,776,964 3,806,333 371,609 21,954,906
Provision -Net (12,461,567) (1,594,618) - (14,056,185)
Segment result 5,315,397 2,211,715 371,609 7,898,721
Unallocated cost
Finance cost - - - (21,569,869)
Administrative and general expenses - - - (43,681,689)

(65,251,558)
Loss before tax - - - (57,352,837)
Provision for taxation - - - (323,749)
Loss for the year - - - (57,676,586)
Other information
Segment assets 323,368,379 61,080,649 - 384,449,028
Unallocated assets - - 21,168,949 21,168,949
Total assets 405,617,977
Segment liabilities 203,814,410 - - 203,814,410
Unallocated liabilities - - 182,243,227 182,243,227
Total liabilities 386,057,637
Net assets - - - 19,560,340
Capital expenditure - - 145,600 145,600

36.3 Geographical segment analysis
The Company’s operations are restricted to Pakistan only.
IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In March 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (known as COVID-19)
as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around the world to implement stringent measures
to help control its spread, including, without limitation, quarantines, "stay-at-home" or "shelter-in-place" orders, social distancing
mandates, travel restrictions, and closures or reduced operations for businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other
institutions. The industry, along with global economic conditions generally, has been significantly disrupted by the pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had certain effect on the operational and financial
position of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 due to overall slowdown in economic activity and continuity
of business operations. However, to reduce the impact on the performance of the Company has introduced a host of measures
on both the financial and operational fronts by issuing certain circulars and notifications from time to time.

The management of the Company is closely monitoring the situation, and in response to the developments, taking all possible

precaution and measures to safeguard health and safety of employees and other stakeholders, and also implemented a number
of measures to minimise the impact to the extent possible.
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39

40

41
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees as at the year end were 28 (2020: 32) and average number of employees during the year were 25
(2020: 33).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the date of report and date of authorization.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purposes of comparison and better
presentation. No significant rearrangements or reclassifications have been made in these financial statements during the year.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 04 March, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

e =

Asghar Maqsood Javed Mehmood M. Shahzad
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2021

Shareholding No of Total Percentage

From To Shareholders Shares Held %
1 100 21 103 0.00
101 500 188 93,407 0.29
501 1,000 49 48,403 0.15
1,001 5,000 78 225,363 0.70
5,001 10,000 15 122,999 0.38
10,001 15,000 13 175,000 0.55
15,001 20,000 3 55,500 0.17
20,001 25,000 3 74,000 0.23
25,001 30,000 2 60,000 0.19
30,001 35,000 3 99,500 0.31
35,001 40,000 1 39,000 0.12
45,001 50,000 2 96,000 0.41
50,001 55,000 3 160,525 0.50
65,001 70,000 1 66,500 0.21
95,001 100,000 1 100,000 0.31
110,001 115,000 1 112,500 0.35
125,001 130,000 1 127,500 0.40
150,001 155,000 1 155,000 0.48
195,001 200,000 1 200,000 0.63
210,001 215,000 1 215,000 0.67
275,001 280,000 1 279,500 0.87
280,001 285,000 1 282,500 0.88
450,001 455,000 1 453,525 1.42
910,001 915,000 1 910,477 2.85
1,295,001 1,300,000 1 1,298,500 4.06
3,140,001 3,145,000 1 3,144,000 9.83
23,405,001 23,410,000 1 23,405,198 73.14
395 32,000,000 100
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Categories of Shareholders
As at December 31, 2021

Categories of Physical cDC Total Percentage
%
Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
Their Spouses and Minor Childern
Directors
Mrs. Darakhshan Sheikh Vohra 1 - 1 0.00
Mr. Tahir Saeed Effendi 1 - 1 0.00
Mr Bilal Mohy Ud Din 1 - 1 0.00
Mr. Javed Mahmood 1 - 1 0.00
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 1 - 1 0.00
Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Mufti 1 - 1 0.00
Mr. Asghar Magsood 500
506 - 6 0.00
Executives - 51,000 51,000 0.16
- 51,000 51,000 0.16
Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties
M/s. SME BANK LIMITED - 23,405,198 23,405,198 73.14
- 23,405,198 23,405,198 73.14
Banks, NBFCs, DFls, Takaful, Pension Funds
Banks - 5,352,977 5,352,977 16.73
NBFCs, DFls - 215,000 215,000 0.67
- 5,567,977 5,567,977 17.40
Insurance Companies - 155,000 155,000 0.48
Other Companies, Corporate Bodies, Trust etc. 46,000 942,202 988,202 3.09
General Public 136,001 1,747,116 1,883,617 5.89
182,507 31,817,493 32,000,000 100.00
Shareholders More Than 5.00%
SME BANK LIMITED 23,405,198 73.14
SUMMIT BANK LIMITED 3,144,000 9.83
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Proxy Form

I/We
of
being a member of SME Leasing Limited hereby appoint
of

(full address)

(full address)

or failing him/her
of

(full address)

as my / our Proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Company

to be held on on April 26, 2022 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this of 2022.

Signature of Member:

Folio Number:

Number of shares held :

Witnesses:
1.

2.

(day) (date, month)

Please affix
Revenue Stamp

Signature and Company Seal

A member entitled to attend and vote at a General meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote instead
of him / her.

The instrument appointing a Proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his / her attorney duly
authorized in writing, if the appointer is a corporation, under its common seal or the hand of an officer or attorney
duly authorized. A Proxy need to be a Member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a Proxy, together with the Power of attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially
certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the Main Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the

meeting.

Any individual Beneficial Owner of the Central Depository Company, entitled to vote at this meeting must bring
his / her National Identity Card with him / her as proof of his / her identity, and in case of Proxy, must enclose an
attested copy of his / her National Identity Card. Representative of corporate entity, shall submit Board of Directors
resolutions / power of attorney with specimen signature (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form
of the Company.
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